
1 
 

WASCO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
September 2, 2014 

Hearing begins at 3:00 p.m. 
Columbia Gorge Discovery Center 

Lower Level Classroom 
5000 Discovery Drive 
The Dalles, OR  97058 

 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

Meeting called to order by John  
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 

WASCO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
Chip Wood 
Taner Elliott 
Andrew Myers 
Kenneth McBain 
Jill Amery 
Russ Hargrave 
 
Brad DeHart, Alt #1 
Jeff Handley, Alt #2 

 
WASCO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSIONERS ABSENT 

Vicky Ashley 
 
 

WASCO COUNTY PLANNING OFFICE STAFF PRESENT 
John Roberts, Planning Director 
Brenda Jenkins, Planning Coordinator 
Patricia Neighbor, Associate Planner 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT: Maximum 15 minutes, limited to items not being heard or discussed elsewhere on the 
agenda. 

 
None 

 

III. ELECTION OF CHAIR 
Director John Roberts welcomed the new alternates, Commissioners Dehart and Handley.  He further 
explained to the Commission that Commissioner Amery will be leaving the Commission as of January 1, 
2015, to take over the Wasco County Assessor duties.  
 
Director Roberts then called for nomination for Commission Chair.  
Commissioner Wood nominated Commissioner McBain. 
Commissioner Amery nominated Commissioner Hargrave. 
Commissioner McBain withdrew his name from the nomination.  
Director Roberts called for a vote. 
The motion was unanimously approved 8 to 0, 1 absent (Commissioner Ashley),  A listing of the vote, 
as required by Oregon Revised Statutes 192.650.c., is as follows: 
 
Commissioner Hargrave – yes 
Commissioner Ashley – absent 
Commissioner Wood - yes 



2 
 

Commissioner Myers – yes 
Commissioner McBain – yes 
Commissioner Amery – yes  
Commissioner Elliott – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Dehart – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Handley – yes 

 
Director Roberts asked if the Commission would like to make the Chair and Vice Chair offices run through 
2015 due to the late time of year for these elections.  
 
Chair Hargrave moved to have the Chair and Vice Chair offices run through 2015. 
Commissioner Amery seconded. 
Chair Hargrave called for a vote.  
The motion was unanimously approved 8 to 0, 1 absent (Commissioner Ashley),  A listing of the vote, 
as required by Oregon Revised Statutes 192.650.c., is as follows: 
 
Commissioner Hargrave – yes 
Commissioner Ashley – absent 
Commissioner Wood - yes 
Commissioner Myers – yes 
Commissioner McBain – yes 
Commissioner Amery – yes  
Commissioner Elliott – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Dehart – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Handley – yes 
 

IV. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR 
Chair Hargrave called for nominations for Vice Chair. 
Commissioner Elliott moved to re-elect Commissioner Ashley as Vice Chair. 
Commissioner Wood seconded.  
Chair Hargrave called for a vote.  
The motion was unanimously approved 8 to 0, 1 absent (Commissioner Ashley),  A listing of the vote, 
as required by Oregon Revised Statutes 192.650.c., is as follows: 
 
Commissioner Hargrave – yes 
Commissioner Ashley – absent 
Commissioner Wood - yes 
Commissioner Myers – yes 
Commissioner McBain – yes 
Commissioner Amery – yes  
Commissioner Elliott – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Dehart – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Handley – yes 
 

V. APPROVAL OF PAST MINUTES: 
December 3, 2013 
 
Commissioner McBain moved to approve the minutes as submitted. 
Commissioner Wood seconded 
Chair Hargrave called for discussion 
None. 
Chair Hargrave called for the vote 

The motion was unanimously approved 8 to 0, 1 absent (Commissioner Ashley),  A listing of the vote, 
as required by Oregon Revised Statutes 192.650.c., is as follows: 
 
Commissioner Hargrave – yes 
Commissioner Ashley – absent 



3 
 

Commissioner Wood - yes 
Commissioner Myers – yes 
Commissioner McBain – yes 
Commissioner Amery – yes  
Commissioner Elliott – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Dehart – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Handley – yes 
 
***Chair Hargrave recognized Commissioner DeHart as voting member for today’s hearing. *** 

 
VI. QUASI JUDICIAL HEARING:  

Chair Hargrave opened the hearing as follows:  
We will now commence the public hearing on agenda item PLASAR-14-03-0011, a review by the Planning 
Commission for:  

1.    Construction of a 1,859 SF addition to existing home 
2. 105 SF uncovered deck 
3. 24’ x 24’ x 12’ (576 SF) carport 
4. Retroactive review of existing 21’ x 11’ x 10.5’ (231 SF) shed 
5. Installation of a 300’ water supply pipeline, supported by a  
 2’ x 22’ x 1’ wood structure, to replace an existing water supply pipe 
6. 8’ x 16’ x 3” gate 
7. Variance to scenic travel corridor setbacks for proposed carport and existing shed 
8.   Variance to fire safety setbacks for proposed carport 

 
The property is described as: 2N 12E 10, tax lot 200.  
The criteria for approval of a land use decision are contained in the Columbia River Gorge Land Use and 
Development Ordinance (“NSA LUDO” as amended).  The specific criteria applicable to this request are 
contained in Chapter 3 (“A-2” Small Scale Agriculture Zone (GMA only) Section 3.130.D, Section 3.130.G 
Property Development Standards), Chapter 6 (Variances), Chapter 11 (Fire Safety Standards), Chapter 13 
(Non-Conforming Use), and Chapter 14 (Scenic Area Review).  The proposed development must comply with 
applicable provisions contained in the Wasco County Comprehensive Plan.  Generally, unless otherwise 
noted, if a request is found to be consistent with the NSA LUDO it is considered consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan 
 
Chair Hargrave asked if any Commission member wished to disqualify themselves for any personal or 
financial interest in this matter. 
None. 
Chair Hargrave asked if any member of the audience wished to challenge the right of any Commission 
member to hear this matter. 
None. 
Chair Hargrave asked if any member of the audience wished to question the jurisdiction of this body to act on 
behalf of Wasco County in this matter. 
None. 
 
Chair Hargrave called for the staff report.   
 
Associate Planner Patricia Neighbor presented the following staff report:  
See Attachment A for PowerPoint presentation and notes. 
 
Director John Roberts submitted comments received from Erin Vance, Marcia Strader, and D.S. Crawford in 
support of the applicant’s request.  He also stated that Staff is recommending approval of the request with 
conditions as listed in the staff report.    
 
Chair Hargrave called for questions from the Commission.   
 
 



4 
 

Commissioner Handley asked for the high water mark for Rowena Creek at this location.  Director Roberts 
stated that would require have an engineer out there to survey the creek to obtain the high water mark.  
Chair Hargrave called for additional questions from the Commission. 
Commissioner Handley stated that he has concerns about the bridge coming loose during high water events 
and possibly causing problems for other property owners by washing onto their property.  
Chair Hargrave polled the Commission on who visited the site.  Commissioners McBain and Hargrave 
stated that they had viewed the site from the road. 
 
Chair Hargrave called for testimony from the applicant. 
 
Tim Schechtel, property owner, applicant: 
Mr. Schechtel submitted written comments to the Commission from Troy Ericson and  
Aaron Matz in support of his proposal (See Record for comments) 
He then gave a brief history of the property and the current development location.  In response to the 
questions and concerns of the Commission, Mr. Schechtel stated that the bridge was above the high water 
mark by at least 1 foot.  He further stated that the driveway has a very wide shoulder before the pavement 
begins; he turns out from the driveway onto the shoulder then proceeds into the pavement.  He believes 
moving the location of the driveway would cause disruption and have adverse effects on the area. 
Commissioner DeHart asked if there was an existing approach permit from Oregon Department of 
Transportation on file for the driveway.  Mr. Schechtel stated he did not know if there was a road approach 
permit.  The driveway was the original driveway and he was unaware if the original owners had obtained an 
approach permit.  Commission DeHart asked if the carport was an open structure.  Mr. Schechtel 
responded that it was and that he was proposing an open structure with a cover, he has no plans to enclose 
it.  
 
Chair Hargrave called for additional questions from the Commission. 
None 
 
Chair Hargrave called for testimony in support of the proposal. 
 
Troy Ericson, surrounding property owner:  
Mr. Ericson stated that he supports the proposal.  He believes that the project will benefit the gorge area and 
neighbors.  He stated that as you drive past the subject property currently, you can see the structure and it is 
an eyesore.  The aesthetic feel and visual impact will be greatly improved with the proposed development.   
 
Chair Hargrave called for additional questions from the Commission. 
None 
 
Chair Hargrave called for additional testimony in favor of the proposal.  
None 
 
Chair Hargrave called for testimony in opposition of the proposal. 
None 
 
Chair Hargrave closed the hearing for deliberation. 
 
Commissioner Wood feels the variances are practicable and would be an improvement on the property. 
Commissioner Elliott agrees the proposal is an improvement. 
Commissioner Handley has concerns that if the water level reaches the bridge it possibly could washout 
and creates substantial damage to the creek bed or surrounding property.   
Chair Hargrave stated that it would take a flood such as the 1996 flood to do that kind of damage, and at that 
point it will not matter; there will be more damage from a flood of that size.  
The Commission discussed the need for the added condition that the areas that were excavated in spring 
2014 shall be replanted.   
   
Chair Hargrave moved to approve the request with the added condition that the areas that were excavated in 
spring 2014, and any areas of additional ground disturbance as a result of site development, shall be 



5 
 

revegetated with plants native to the Columbia River Gorge no later than the planting season (October – April) 
following the completion of development per section 14. 
Commissioner McBain seconded.  
 
Chair Hargrave called for a vote.  
The motion was unanimously approved 6 to 0, 1 abstain (Commissioner Wood), 1 absent 
(Commissioner Ashley), A listing of the vote, as required by Oregon Revised Statutes 192.650.c., is as 
follows: 
 
Commissioner Hargrave – yes 
Commissioner Ashley – absent 
Commissioner Wood - abstain 
Commissioner Myers – yes 
Commissioner McBain – yes 
Commissioner Amery – yes  
Commissioner Elliott – yes 
Alternate Commissioner Dehart –yes 
Alternate Commissioner Handley – non voting 
 

VII. Optional discussion of other business 
Director Roberts gave a brief explanation of the following topics:  
General discussion on planning process and how it may be affecting planning commission  
Resignation of Senior Planner Joey Shearer 
Current workload on Staff 
Upcoming reviews on Outdoor Mass Gatherings (OMGs) 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT  

Adjourned at   5:09 pm 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
_______________________________  ________________________________ 
Donald Hargrave, Chair    John Roberts, Planning Director 
Wasco County Planning Commission  Wasco County Planning & Development 

 


